
Merton Council 

Health and Wellbeing Board  
Date: 27 January 2015  

Time:   1.00 pm 

Venue:   Merton Dementia Hub, 67 Whitford Gardens, Mitcham, CR4 4AA 

 

1  Declarations of pecuniary interest   

2  Apologies for absence   

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014  1 - 6 

4  Transforming Primary Care  7 - 26 

5  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Consultation  27 - 30 

6  Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Report on Priority 2  31 - 42 

7  Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Report on Priority 4  43 - 66 

Future meeting dates 

24 March, 23 June, 29 September, 24 November. 
 

This is a public meeting – members of the public are very welcome to attend. 
 

Requests to speak will be considered by the Chair.  If you would like to speak, 
please contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk by midday on the day before 
the meeting. 

For more information about the work of this Board, please contact Clarissa Larsen, 
on 020 8545 4871 or e-mail democratic.services@merton.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries: press@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3483 or 4093. 
 

Note on declarations of interest 

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
at the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room 
during the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that 
matter.  If  members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest 
which may give rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate 
in consideration of the item.  For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of 
Corporate Governance. 



Health and Wellbeing Board Membership 
 
Merton Councillors 
 

• Caroline Cooper-Marbiah (Chair) 

• Gilli Lewis-Lavender 

• Maxi Martin 
 
Council Officers (non-voting) 
 

• Director of Community and Housing 

• Director of Children, Schools and Families 

• Director of Public Health 
 
Statutory representatives 
 

• Four representatives of Merton Clinical Commissioning Group 

• Chair of Healthwatch 
 
Non statutory representatives 
 

• One representative of Merton Voluntary Services Council 

• One representative of the Community Engagement Network 
 
Quorum 
 
Any 3 of the whole number. 
 
Voting 
 
3 (1 vote per councillor) 
4 Merton Clinical Commissioning Group (1 vote per CCG member) 
1 vote Chair of Healthwatch 
1 vote Merton Voluntary Services Council 
1 vote Community Engagement Network 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 27 January 2015 

Wards:  

Subject:  Transforming Primary Care Update 

Lead officer: Eleanor Brown, Chief Officer 

Lead member: n/a 

Forward Plan reference number: n/a 

Contact officer: n/a 

Recommendations:  

A. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the Transforming Primary Care 
update. 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with : 

· Details of the London draft Strategic Commissioning Framework for Primary 
Care 

· A high level timetable for Transforming Primary Care in Merton 

· Information regarding Primary Care Co-Commissioning including an update of 
joint working with other CCGG’s 

 

2 DETAILS 

2.1. See slide pack presentation attached 

 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1. N/A 

 

4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

4.1. There has been extensive stakeholder involvement across London with 
Local Authority, Education Providers, the LMC, Users and Carers, NHS 
England and CCG’s. 

 

5 TIMETABLE 

5.1. See previous section 4. 

5.2. The framework is due to be implemented from 1 April 2015 with an 
expectation that the framework is in place within 5 years. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. There is extensive work being undertaken across London to estimate the 
resources required to implement the framework. 

 

7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. N/A 

 

8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. N/A 

 

9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. N/A 

 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

 

11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

N/A 

 

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 8



T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

in
g

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 C
a
re

 
U

p
d

a
te

  

M
e

rt
o

n
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g
  
B

o
a
rd

  

D
r 

H
o
w

a
rd

 F
re

e
m

a
n
  

C
h
a
ir
, 

M
e

rt
o
n
 C

C
G

  

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

E
le

a
n
o
r 

B
ro

w
n
  

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 M
e
rt

o
n
 C

C
G

  

Page 9



In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

te
x
t 

2
 

•
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 t

h
a
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

•
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 a

re
: 

•
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 C
a
re

) 

•
C

o
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 (
m

e
d

ic
a
l)

 C
a
re

 (
w

h
ic

h
 b

ri
n
g

s
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

C
C

G
 a

n
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
) 

•
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

h
a
ir

e
d
 b

y
 E

le
a
n
o
r 

B
ro

w
n
 (

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 M
e
rt

o
n
 C

C
G

) 
a
n
d
 D

r 
N

ic
o
la

 J
o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
a
ir
, 

W
a
n
d
s
w

o
rt

h
 C

C
G

) 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 10



N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 (

N
H

S
E

) 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

C
G

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 ‘
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
’ 
o
n
 2

6
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 n
e
w

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
t 

T
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 ‘
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
’ 
n
o
t 

‘f
o
rm

’,
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

a
 n

e
w

 p
a
ti
e
n
t 

o
ff
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

L
o
n
d
o
n
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 n

e
w

 

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 b

y
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 e
.g

. 
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

It
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

m
b
it
io

n
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 F
iv

e
 Y

e
a
r 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 V
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 ‘
B

e
tt

e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 f

o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
’ 

re
p
o
rt

, 
b
o
th

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

C
o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
re

 1
7
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 

o
ff
e
r;

 a
c
ro

s
s
 3

 a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
a
re

 t
h
a
t 

m
a
tt

e
r 

m
o
s
t 

to
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

: 

•
P

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 c

a
re

 

•
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
re

  

•
C

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 c

a
re

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

  

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 11



4
 

T
o

p
ic

 
S

p
e
c

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 

P
1

. 
C

o
-d

e
s

ig
n

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
, 
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 
c
h

a
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
 t

o
 c

o
-d

e
s
ig

n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g
 

P
2

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
s

s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 m

a
p

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
o

c
ia

l 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
ld

 e
m

p
o

w
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
m

a
in

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 f
e

e
l 

c
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

P
3

. 
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
c

o
n

v
e

rs
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
c

u
s
e

d
 o

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
’ 
h

e
a

lt
h

 g
o

a
ls

 

W
h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
, 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
s
k
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
g
o

a
ls

 

P
4

. 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 l
ia

is
o

n
 a

n
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
is

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
  
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 e
x
te

n
d

 i
n
to

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
 

P
5

. 
P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

c
c

e
s
s

in
g

 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
c

a
re

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

ill
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
ro

u
ti
n

e
ly

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
ill

 h
e

a
lt
h

 

P
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
 C

a
re

 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 12



5
 

T
o

p
ic

 
S

p
e
c

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 

A
1

. 
P

a
ti

e
n

t 
c

h
o

ic
e

 
P

a
ti
e

n
ts

 a
re

 g
iv

e
n

 a
 c

h
o

ic
e
 o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 d

e
c
id

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 m
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

to
 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e
d

s
 

A
2

. 
C

o
n

ta
c

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 c
lic

k
, 

c
a

ll 
o

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 
a

n
d

 c
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 m

o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

o
n

lin
e

. 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

ill
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 

A
3

. 
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 o

p
e
n

in
g

 

h
o

u
rs

 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

re
-b

o
o
k
a

b
le

 r
o
u

ti
n

e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 8
a

m
-6

.3
0
p
m

 M
o

n
d

a
y
 t
o

 F
ri
d

a
y
 a

n
d

 8
a

m
-

1
2

p
m

 o
n

 S
a

tu
rd

a
y
s
 

A
4

. 
E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 

h
o

u
rs

 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

 G
P

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
e

v
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 1

2
 h

o
u

rs
 a

 

d
a

y
 (

u
s
u

a
lly

 8
a

m
-8

p
m

) 
in

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

re
a

 f
o

r 
p

re
-b

o
o

k
a
b
le

 a
n

d
 u

n
s
c
h

e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 a
p

p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 

A
5

. 
S

a
m

e
 d

a
y
 a

c
c

e
s
s

 
P

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 a
 G

P
 o

r 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d

 n
u

rs
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 

d
a

y
 w

it
h
in

 r
o
u

ti
n
e

 s
u
rg

e
ry

 h
o

u
rs

 a
t 
th

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 

A
6

. 
U

rg
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 c

a
re

 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
ly

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 

u
rg

e
n

t 
o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 n

e
e

d
s
  

A
7

. 
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it

y
 o

f 

c
a

re
 

A
ll 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 w

it
h

 a
 n

a
m

e
d
 G

P
 w

h
o

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 

re
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y.

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

fl
e
x
ib

le
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 

le
n

g
th

s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 C

a
re

 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 13



6
 

C
o

o
rd

in
a
te

d
 C

a
re

 

T
o

p
ic

 
S

p
e
c

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 

C
1
. 
C

a
s

e
 f

in
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 
fr

o
m

 c
o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 

w
it
h

 a
 n

a
m

e
d

 c
lin

ic
ia

n
, 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
o

s
e

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
 a

 

re
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 

C
2
. 
N

a
m

e
d

 P
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l 
P

a
ti
e

n
ts

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 c

a
re

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 n

a
m

e
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
w

h
o

 

o
v
e

rs
e
e

s
 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 

C
3
. 
C

a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

E
a

c
h
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 c

a
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n
v
it
e
d

 t
o

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

 h
o

lis
ti
c
 

c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

in
g
le

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 

th
o

s
e

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
re

 

C
4
. 
P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

 

m
a

n
a
g

e
 t

h
e

ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t
e

a
m

s
 w

ill
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
in

 w
h

ic
h
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 t
o

o
ls

, 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

C
5
. 
M

u
lt

i-
d

is
c

ip
li

n
a
ry

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 n
e

e
d
in

g
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 c

a
re

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

m
u

lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 b

y
 a

 t
e

a
m

 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 

n
e

e
d

s
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 14



7
 

S
W

L
 C

C
G

s
 a

re
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti

c
e
s
 t

o
 s

e
lf

 a
s
s
e
s
s
/ 
a
u

d
it

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

 f
o

r:
 

•
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 e

.g
. 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

•
In

fo
rm

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
e
.g

. 
jo

in
t 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

  

K
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
: 

•
C

o
lla

ti
n
g
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 C

C
G

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 m

id
- 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 b
e
s
t 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 S

W
L

 

•
A

c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
le

g
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

•
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

E
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 o

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 e

s
ta

te
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 f
it
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 f
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

•
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 H

E
S

L
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
s
k
ill

 

m
ix

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 d

ra
ft

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
th

e
 K

e
o
g
h
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

W
L
 5

 y
e
a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

  

N
e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 f

o
r 

S
W

L
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 15



8
 

•
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
: 

C
C

G
s
 a

re
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
T

h
e
s
e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

il
l 
h

e
lp

 u
s
 a

ll
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 l

o
c
a
l 

G
P

 a
n

d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 

c
a
p

a
c
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e
r 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

5
 y

e
a
rs

 

•
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
5
: 

F
in

a
l,
 f
o
rm

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d

 

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 –
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 16



9
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 –
 M

e
rt

o
n

 C
C

G
 

A
re

a
 f

o
r 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
B

y
 W

h
e
n

 

1
.0

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4
 –

 A
p

r 
2

0
1

5
 

2
.0

 
L

o
c
a

li
ty

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 R

e
v
ie

w
 /
 F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4
 –

 J
u

n
 2

0
1

5
 

3
.0

 
A

ll
 p

ra
c

ti
c
e

s
 n

e
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 h

a
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 

A
p

r 
- 

D
e
c
 2

0
1

5
 

4
.0

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

te
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

  
 2

0
1

5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

5
.0

 
C

o
-C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

  
 N

o
v
 2

0
1

4
 –

 M
a

r 
2
0

1
5
 

 6
.0

 

L
M

C
 a

n
d

 M
C

C
G

 t
o

 h
a
v
e

 j
o

in
t 

e
v
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
it

h
 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
ra

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

li
ty

 L
e
a

d
s

 
A

p
r 

2
0

1
5

 T
B

C
  

7
.0

 
P

a
ti

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

c
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

J
a

n
 2

0
1

5
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 17



1
0
 

•
C

o
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 F
iv

e
 Y

e
a
r 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 V
ie

w
. 

C
o

-c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 e

n
a
b
le

r 
in

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
  

o
u
t 

o
f 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 

•
In

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
, 

S
im

o
n
 S

te
v
e
n
s
 (

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 –

 N
H

S
) 

in
v
it
e
d
 C

C
G

s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
o
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
‘E

x
p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t’ 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
o
w

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 C

C
G

s
 w

o
u
ld

 

lik
e
 t
o
 a

s
s
u
m

e
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

te
s
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

Ø
S

h
o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 c

a
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

 

Ø
R

a
is

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
  

Ø
C

u
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 

 

•
N

H
S

E
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 1

0
th

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
o

-

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

C
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

  

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 18



1
1
 

G
re

a
te

r 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
D

e
le

g
a

te
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

C
C

G
s
 w

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

 

m
o

re
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 

a
re

a
 t
e

a
m

s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
s
. 
N

o
 n

e
w

 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n
ts

 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
  

C
C

G
s
 w

o
u

ld
 a

s
s
u

m
e

 

jo
in

t 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

 

a
re

a
 t
e

a
m

s
. 
 

A
 j
o
in

t 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 a

n
d

 

C
C

G
 c

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
 

a
m

e
n

d
e
d

. 

C
C

G
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

a
s
s
u

m
e

 f
u

ll 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 

N
H

S
E

 w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 

C
C

G
s
 

T
h

re
e
 m

o
d

e
ls

 f
o

r 
c
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 19



1
2
 

C
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 -
 C

o
n

t.
 

•
S

ix
 C

C
G

s
 i
n
 S

W
L
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 c

o
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 

lik
e
 t
o
 a

d
o
p
t 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 p

u
rs

u
e

 t
h
e
 ‘
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

’ 

•
M

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
5
 w

it
h
 C

C
G

s
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

E
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

•
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 C

C
G

 w
it
h
 G

P
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

/p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 b

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 C

C
G

 p
a
ti
e
n
t 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 

b
u
ild

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 
 A

ls
o
 i
n
 S

W
L
C

C
 P

a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

P
u
b
lic

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
te

e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 (

P
P

E
S

G
) 

•
C

C
G

s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 p
la

n
 t

o
 N

H
S

E
 b

y
 3

0
th

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5

 

•
T

h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 g
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
5

 

 

 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 20



1
3
 

          

1
3
 

 

  

 

 

•
J
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

ll 

C
C

G
s
 i
n
 S

W
L
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

E
 a

llo
w

s
 s

h
a
re

d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 

•
J
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
il
l 
a
ll

o
w

 

C
C

G
s
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 

•
J
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
il
l 
a
ll

o
w

 

C
C

G
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 

•
J
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 
a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 
m

a
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ts
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t,
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
/c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 

 
1

3
 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

e
s
 j
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 m

e
a
n

?
 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 21



1
4
 

  K
e
y
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
  

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 22



1
5
 

N
H

S
E

 h
a

v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 b
e

 c
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d
 (

c
o
re

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
),

 

n
a

m
e

ly
: 

•
D

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 (
A

P
M

S
, 

P
M

S
) 

•
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

•
C

o
n

tr
a
c
tu

a
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

•
R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

•
L

o
c
a

l 
E

n
h

a
n
c
e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

•
D

ir
e
c
te

d
 E

n
h

a
n
c
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
D

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
in

c
e

n
ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 Q
O

F
 

•
T

h
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 

•
A

p
p

ro
v
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 m

e
rg

e
rs

 

•
M

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 ‘
d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

’ p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

S
W

L
 C

C
G

s
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 N
H

S
E

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 

th
e

s
e

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 c

o
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h

 a
n

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f
o

r 
g
re

a
te

r 
in

fl
u
e

n
c
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 

u
s
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

D
e
ta

il 
o

n
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
C

C
G

s
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 8

th
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
C

o
n

fl
ic

ts
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 1

8
th

 D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

 W
h

a
t 

d
o

e
s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

m
e
a
n

?
  
 2

7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 23



1
6
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

•
A

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

•
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

•
W

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 g

o
a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 S

W
L
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

  

•
S

c
a
le

: 
C

C
G

s
 c

a
n
 w

o
rk

 a
t 
s
c
a
le

 a
n
d
 i
n
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 in

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a
t 
is

 n
o
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 A

s
 a

 

c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 S

W
L
, 
C

C
G

s
 c

a
n
 a

g
re

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 s

h
if
te

d
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
s
ir
a
b
le

 

•
In

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
: 
 a

llo
w

in
g
 f
o
r 

in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

C
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

n
a
ly

ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 t
ri
a
n
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

s
e
ts

, 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
 a

n
d
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 C

C
G

 a
n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

 o
n
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 c
le

a
re

r 
p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

•
L
o
c
a
lis

m
: 
a
llo

w
in

g
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

s
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 b

ri
n
g
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 d

is
c
re

te
 q

u
a
n
ti
ta

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

. 
L
o
c
a
lly

 w
e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 o

u
t-

o
f-

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

a
m

b
it
io

n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 c
a
re

 

 

 

 W
h

a
t 

d
o

e
s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
o

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

m
e
a
n

 f
o

r 
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
?

 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 24



1
7
 

•
C

C
G

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 G
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 B

o
d
ie

s
, 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

to
 f

it
  

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

W
L

-w
id

e
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
 

•
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 /

 s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

•
C

C
G

s
 a

n
d
 S

W
L
C

C
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
o

-c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 3

0
th

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5

 

•
P

la
n
 f
o
r 

C
C

G
 G

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 B

o
d
ie

s
 t
o
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 1

3
-

2
9
  

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 e

.g
. 
T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
  

 N
e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
 f

o
r 

S
W

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 M

e
rt

o
n

 C
C

G
  

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 25



1
8
 

N
e

x
t 

S
te

p
s

 

“I
f 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 i
s
 m

o
v
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 
to

g
e

th
e
r,

 t
h
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 t
a
k
e
s
 c

a
re

 
o
f 

it
s
e
lf
.”

 

H
e

n
ry

 F
o
rd

 

2
7
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 U
p
d
a
te

  

Page 26



Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 27 January 2015 

Agenda item: 5 

Wards: All. 

Subject:  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

Lead officer: Dr Kay Eilbert, Director of Public Health. 

Lead member: Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah. Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care and Health. 

Contact officer: Barry Causer, Public Health Commissioning Manager. 

Recommendations:  

A. Note that the statutory 60 day consultation of the draft PNA has been completed 
and responses are being collated. 

B. The final draft PNA will be sent to HWB members in mid February for comment, in 
advance of its finalisation. 

C. That the HWB agree to receive the completed PNA at its March 2015 meeting for 
adoption; in advance of the statutory deadline of 1st April 2015. 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to update the HWB on the progress of the 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) and set out plans to finalise and 
adopt the document in advance of the statutory deadline. 

2 DETAILS 

2.1. The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical 
Services) Regulations 2013 includes a requirement that the Health and 
Wellbeing Board publish a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) by 1st 
April 2015. 

2.2. A PNA is a tool for identifying current and future needs at a local level to 
explore the potential and improve quality and effectiveness of 
pharmaceutical services. It uses robust, up to date evidence to ensure that 
pharmacy services are provided in the right place and that local authorities 
meet the needs of the community that it serves.  

2.3. It is used by NHS England when making decisions on applications to open 
new pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractor premises. Such 
decisions are appealable and decisions made on appeal can be challenged 
through the courts. 

2.4. Merton’s PNA will also look at the public health services commissioned by 
locally by Public Health and recommend areas for improvement, expansion 
and opportunities for the future. 

 

2.5. Progress to date 

Agenda Item 5

Page 27



2.6. Following a competitive process, Merton Public Health commissioned 
Primary Care Commissioning (PCC) to produce the PNA. This 
commissioning was undertaken jointly with Sutton Council, realising savings 
of around £5,000 for Merton. 

2.7. A joint Sutton and Merton PNA steering group was initially set up to oversee 
the joint contract, however this evolved and each borough now has its own 
steering group. The Merton steering group has representatives from Merton 
Council Pubic Health, Merton Clinical Commissioning Group, Merton Sutton 
and Wandsworth Local Pharmaceutical Committee and Sutton and Merton 
Local Medical Council. 

2.8. Consultation 

2.9. In order to complete this process the HWB has consulted with those parties 
identified under regulation 8 of the 2013 regulations, to establish if the draft 
PNA addresses issues that they considered relevant to the provision of 
pharmaceutical services.  Examples of consulted parties include:  

· Sutton, Merton and Wandsworth LPC 

· Sutton, Merton and Wandsworth LMC 

· Healthwatch Merton 

· NHS Trusts 

· Neighbouring HWBs, and  

· Contractors on the pharmaceutical list for the area of the HWB. 

  

In addition, other local stakeholders were invited to consult on the draft. 
These included commissioners such as Merton CCG, patient groups and 
local residents. The consultation ran from 29 October until 31 December 
2014. 

2.10. The consultation received a total 11 responses; four from 
pharmacies/dispensing appliance contractors, two on behalf of 
organisations, one personal response and four that didn’t respond to the 
question. 
 

3 NEXT STEPS 

3.1. The Merton PNA Steering group is meeting on the 3rd February 2015 to 
consider the responses made to the consultation and develop a final draft 
PNA. This will then be sent to HWB members in mid February for comment. 

3.2. Once finalised, it is our intention that the final PNA will be adopted by the 
HWB at its March 2015 meeting; in advance of the statutory deadline of 1st 
April 2015.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1. Publishing a PNA is a statutory requirement under The National Health 
Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
2013.  

5 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

5.1. The consultation on the PNA is clearly set out with regulations for the 
consultation to last at least 60 days and to consult with the Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee, the Local Medical Committee, persons on the 
pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors in the area, the LPS 
chemist in its area, the Local Healthwatch, any NHS Trust or NHS 
Foundation Trust, NHS England, neighbouring HWB’s and any other patient, 
consumer or community group in its area who has an interest in the 
provision of pharmaceutical services in the area. 

6 TIMETABLE 

6.1. The deadline for the HWB to publish a revised assessment is 1st April 2015. 

7 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. Commissioning PCC to produce the PNA has costcal £32,500 from the 
Public Health budget. 

8 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Publishing a PNA is a statutory requirement under The National Health     
Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
2013. 

9 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. The PNA is concerned with delivering a balanced and equitable provision of 
service throughout the borough. In order to address health inequalities it is 
important that there is access to accurate data which reflects real needs.  

10 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

10.1. None. 

11 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

12 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

· None. 

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

13.1. The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical 
Services) Regulations 2013. 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board  

Date: 27 January 2015 

Wards: All 

Subject: HWB Strategy Priority 2 – Update on Progress  
Lead officer: Dr Kay Eilbert, Director of Public Health. 

Lead member: Cllr Caroline Cooper-Marbiah, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

and Health. 

Forward Plan reference number:  

Contact officer: Barry Causer, Public Health Commissioning Manager. 

Recommendations:  

A. To note and consider progress on the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy Priority 2: Supporting People to Improve their Wellbeing. 

 

1  PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on 

progress on the delivery plan for the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 2: 
Supporting People to improve their Wellbeing. 

 
This will be the final update on the existing Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2013/14 as it is currently being refreshed as outlined in a separate report to 
this Board. 
 

2  DETAILS 
 
2.1  Introduction 
 

The Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013/14 Priority 2 has a focus on 
supporting people to improve their wellbeing. It has a commitment to further 
strengthen our partnership approach to preventive strategies and activities 
under this priority are delivered by a range of organisations. 

 
The Strategy makes clear that we want to support people in Merton to 
improve their health and wellbeing, to increase quality of life, enable people to 
make their own choices and have better life chances. In doing so, we want to 
reduce the gap in life expectancy and reduce the burden on public services. 
 
Circulatory disease (including cardiovascular disease and stroke) and cancer 
are still the major killers in Merton and consequently these diseases along 
with diabetes are among the main causes of long term illness and disability.  
 
Key risk factors are smoking, being overweight and obese, lack of physical 
activity and risky drinking behaviour and therefore many of the resulting 

Agenda Item 6

Page 31



illnesses and conditions are potentially preventable. Mental Wellbeing is of 
vital importance for long-term physical health and there are links between 
long-term stress, isolation and loneliness and poorer physical health. 
 
Lifestyle decisions have a very significant impact on future health and 
wellbeing; however, while individual lifestyle choices may seem most 
amenable to change through ‘informed choice’ in reality many apparently free 
choices are strongly influenced by socioeconomic, cultural and environmental 
factors. Tackling inequalities requires partnership work with communities and 
an integrated approach to prevention and health improvement. 
 
Ultimately, we want to: 
 
●strengthen self-esteem, confidence and personal responsibility 
●positively promote healthier behaviours and lifestyles 
●adapt the environment to make healthier choices easier 
●promote an integrated approach to healthy living 

 

Page 32



 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 P
la

n
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

: 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
. 

(P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

t 
Ja

n
u

a
ry

 

2
0

1
5

) 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

.1
: 

P
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

K
e

y
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 

In
d

ic
a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e
s
s

 
m

e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 d
a

te
  

L
e
a
d

 

1
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

n
 

N
H

S
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
C

h
e

c
k
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 a
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

a
n

 N
H

S
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
C

h
e

c
k
 (

P
H

O
F

 
2

.2
2

)  
   P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e

lig
ib

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 a
n

 
N

H
S

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
C

h
e

c
k
 (

P
H

O
F

 
2

.2
2

) 

T
h

e
 N

H
S

 H
e
a

lt
h

 C
h

e
c
k
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d
 f

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 p

h
a

rm
a

c
ie

s
 

h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
o

v
e

ri
n
g

 R
a
y
n

e
s
 P

a
rk

, 
H

ill
s
id

e
, 
G

ra
v
e

n
e

y
 a

n
d

 A
b
b

e
y
 W

a
rd

s
. 

In
 2

0
1
3

-1
4
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
1

,5
2

2
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

n
d
 6

,6
6

7
 c

h
e
c
k
s
. 

 F
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 5

,6
3

9
 o

ff
e

rs
 w

it
h

 

2
,6

7
9
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o

 d
a

te
. 

P
H

O
F

 2
.2

2
 –

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

o
p
le

 t
h
a

t 
w

e
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

n
 N

H
S

 H
e
a

lt
h
 C

h
e

c
k
 Q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 1

 t
o

 2
 

is
 5

5
.6

%
, 

w
it
h

 u
p

ta
k
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
4

7
.5

%
. 

P
H

O
F

 2
.2

2
 –

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 p
e

o
p
le

 t
h
a

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
 N

H
S

 H
e
a
lt
h

 C
h

e
c
k
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 1
 t

o
 2

 i
s
 4

7
.5

%
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
re

 p
ro

c
u

ri
n

g
 a

 n
e

w
 I

T
 c

a
ll/

re
c
a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
ta

, 
a

llo
w

 
ti
g

h
te

r 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 b
u

rd
e

n
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 Q
u
a

rt
e

r 
3
. 

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

2
.I

n
c
re

a
s
e

 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 v

ia
 

L
iv

e
W

e
ll  

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

lf
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 h
e
a

lt
h
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 

L
iv

e
W

e
ll 

T
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 h

e
a
lt
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
iv

e
W

e
ll 

b
a

n
n

e
r,

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
3

. 

In
 2

0
1
3

/1
4
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 4

9
5

 M
e

rt
o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o

 s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 9
7

0
 s

e
lf
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 h
e
a

lt
h
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 L
iv

e
W

e
ll 

a
n
d

 M
V

S
C

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

2
2

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

h
o

 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

in
 1

1
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
 l
o
c
a

l 
G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 E

a
s
t 
M

e
rt

o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
s
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 c
h
a

m
p
io

n
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

n
 t

h
e

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

w
a

rd
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

M
e

rt
o

n
 C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

A
w

a
rd

s
 2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 w
e

re
 s

h
o

rt
lis

te
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 A
d
v
a

n
c
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

w
a

rd
s
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

a
w

a
rd

s
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

Page 33



 

3
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 
e

a
s
t 
o

f 
M

e
rt

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 
w

e
 k

n
o

w
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 t

h
e

 
b

ig
g

e
s
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
. 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

s
 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n

 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
P

R
G

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 B

id
. 
 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 f

iv
e

 r
o
u
n

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

M
H

W
B

F
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 3
4

 g
ro

u
p
s
, 

to
 a

 v
a

lu
e
 o

f 
£

1
9

0
,0

1
9

. 
In

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 a

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

6
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
p
e

c
if
ic

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
e

re
 v

a
lu

e
d

 a
t 

£
4

7
,0

5
8

; 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
£
2

3
7
,0

7
7
. 

A
 f

in
a

l 
e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 
im

p
a
c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 f
o

r 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

5
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

u
n

d
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n

 2
0

1
4
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e

c
e
iv

in
g

 d
o

n
a

ti
o
n

s
. 
In

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

 M
V

S
C

, 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

, 
la

u
n

c
h
e

d
 S

to
p

 S
ta

rt
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
, 

w
h

ic
h
 a

s
k
e

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 m

o
n

e
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 f

u
n
d

 w
h

ils
t 
m

a
k
in

g
 

p
le

d
g
e

s
 e

.g
. 
s
to

p
p

in
g

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 o

r 
b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e

. 

A
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
lla

rd
s
 H

ill
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

 g
re

a
te

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c
e

 w
h

e
n

 l
o
o

k
in

g
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt
h

. 
T

h
is

 a
u
d

it
 h

a
s
 r

e
a

lis
e
d

 6
5
0

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 i
n
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 w
a

y
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 

M
V

S
C

/P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
a

lt
h
 

4
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
h
e

a
lt
h

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 d

a
y
 t

o
 

d
a

y
 w

o
rk

.  

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
in

to
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

L
iv

e
W

e
ll/

S
to

p
 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
.  

 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e
s
 (

b
u
ild

in
g

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 w

o
rk

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 
tr

a
in

e
d

 a
ll 

F
ir
e

 f
ig

h
te

rs
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
 (

ju
s
t 

u
n
d

e
r 

1
0

0
) 

to
 s

to
p

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

n
e

) 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
ra

in
e

d
 4

2
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 
h

a
v
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 l
e

a
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

it
h

in
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il,

 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

c
t 

a
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 w
o

rk
p

la
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
M

e
rt

o
n

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

o
m

e
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

. 
T

h
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
o
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 f
re

q
u
e

n
t 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

u
b

lic
, 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a

lly
 e

m
b

e
d

 h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 ‘
m

a
k
e

 e
v
e

ry
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
c
o

u
n

t’
. 

 

M
C

C
G

/P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h
 

5
. 

E
n

g
a
g

e
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

ir
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
. 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
L

iv
e
W

e
ll 

c
lin

ic
s
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

(h
o

s
te

d
 a

t 
a

 
v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
v
e

n
u

e
s
).

  

  

M
e

rt
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
A

w
a

rd
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r 

A
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 

s
c
h
e

m
e
, 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
n

-L
o
n

d
o
n

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
ta

ff
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 c

h
o

o
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ir
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
t,

 w
h

ils
t 
th

e
 M

e
rt

o
n

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
’s

 l
if
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

, 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

 h
a

s
 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 S
te

p
 J

o
c
k
e

y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

s
 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 k
e

e
p
 t

ra
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
b

e
 e

v
a

lu
a
te

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 6

 m
o

n
th

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
ff
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 w
ill

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 M

ic
ro

, 
S

m
a
ll 

a
n

d
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
 (

i.
e

. 
le

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 2
5

0
 s

ta
ff

) 
in

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ly
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
s
, 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
e

m
p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

n
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 m
e
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

Page 34



6
.E

n
s
u
re

 
m

e
n

ta
l 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 i
s
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 u

s
e

d
 

c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
 

T
h

e
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
e
d

 o
ff
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
W

B
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 

e
n

s
u
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

le
a

d
 a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
. 

     

L
B

M
/M

C
C

G
/V

o
l 

S
e

c
to

r 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

.2
 :

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 h
e
a
lt

h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r/

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 d
a

te
  

L
e
a
d

 

1
. 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
i

v
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

W
e
ig

h
t 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 f
o

r 
M

e
rt

o
n

, 
(a

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 
c
h

ild
re

n
) 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 

a
s
 o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

 o
b

e
s
e

 
(P

H
O

F
 2

.1
2

) 

P
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 M
e

rt
o

n
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

M
C

C
G

) 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

e
ig

h
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
ts

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

h
a
s
e

 a
n

d
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
. 

T
h

e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
(P

H
O

F
 2

.1
2

) 
s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
5
8

.3
%

 o
f 

M
e

rt
o

n
 a

d
u
lt
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o

b
e

s
e
. 

T
h

e
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 i
s
 6

3
.8

%
 a

n
d

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 i
s
 5

7
.3

%
. 
 

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

2
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

 
w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

 o
b

e
s
e

 
a

d
u

lt
s
 

T
h

re
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d
 

A
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

ie
te

ti
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 R

o
y
a

l 
M

a
rs

d
e
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 a
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
h

a
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
h
a

v
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 M
e

rt
o

n
 

C
o
u

n
c
il.

 D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 P
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h
 t

o
 M

C
C

G
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

. 

In
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 M
C

C
G

, 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

ie
r 

tw
o

 a
n
d

 t
ie

r 
th

re
e
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 a
 t

ie
r 

tw
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5
.  

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

3
. 

P
ro

m
o

te
 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
, 
w

h
e

re
 2

2
 M

e
rt

o
n

 f
o

o
d
 r

e
ta

ile
rs

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 s

ig
n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

a
te

ri
n

g
 

C
o
n

s
u
m

e
r 

&
 

Page 35



H
e
a

lt
h
ie

r 
F

o
o

d
 C

h
o

ic
e

s
 

c
a

te
re

rs
 s

ig
n

e
d

 
u

p
 t

o
 H

C
C

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
re

la
te

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 
 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
(w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 t

h
o
s
e

 r
e

ta
ile

rs
 w

h
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
ir

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

o
ic

e
s
) 

P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 l
o
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
p
o

s
t 
to

 l
e

a
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
. 

 

 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

4
.I

n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

in
 a

d
u

lt
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
e
d

 
g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 o

n
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

b
y
 0

.5
%

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 
y
e

a
r 

(1
5

0
 

m
in

u
te

s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
) 

(P
H

O
F

 
2

.1
3

)  
 

T
h

e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
(P

H
O

F
 2

.1
3

a
 a

n
d

 2
.1

3
b

) 
s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
 

·
 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
 i
s
 6

2
%

, 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 
5

5
.5

%
 a

n
d

 a
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 
o

f 
5

5
.6

%
. 

·
 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
in

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 M

e
rt

o
n

 i
s
 2

4
.2

%
, 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2
8

.4
%

 a
n

d
 a

n
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2

8
.9

%
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 h
a

v
e

 r
e
c
e

n
tl
y
 i
n
v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 M
U

G
A

 a
t 

th
e

 C
a
n

n
o

n
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 n

e
w

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

g
y
m

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

E
a

s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 g
y
m

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

tr
a

in
e

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

m
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
m

 s
a

fe
ly

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 

L
e

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 
C

u
lt
u

re
 

  P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

5
.P

ro
m

o
te

 a
 

h
e

a
lt
h

ie
r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
s
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 4
 

A
n

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 f
o

r 
M

e
rt

o
n

 t
o

 b
e
 p

a
rt

 a
 F

o
o

d
 F

la
g

s
h
ip

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n
d

 a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 u

n
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 M

e
rt

o
n

 w
a

s
 

s
h

o
rt

lis
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
e
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
a

n
e
l.
  

T
h

is
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 f
o

c
u
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

re
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
-w

id
e

 f
o

o
d

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 a
im

 t
o
 b

ri
n

g
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
o

o
d

 e
n

v
ir
o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 M

e
rt

o
n

, 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 

fo
ru

m
 f
o

r 
n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

T
h

is
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 w

ill
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 s

h
a

re
d
 v

is
io

n
 a

m
o
n

g
s
t 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 
s
e

tt
in

g
 

th
e

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 e
q

u
ip

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

n
o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 c

o
n

c
re

te
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
&

 
R

e
g

e
n

/P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
a

lt
h
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

.3
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r/

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

L
e

a
d

 

1
. 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
 

a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 

T
o

b
a

c
c
o

 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 

p
re

v
a

le
n
c
e

 i
n

 
a

d
u

lt
s
 (

o
v
e

r 
1

8
 

y
e

a
rs

) 
b

y
 x

%
 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

A
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
to

b
a
c
c
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
in

 p
la

c
e

, 
s
tr

o
n
g

 l
in

k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 m

a
d

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
&

 r
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
b

u
ild

 u
p

o
n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

L
B

M
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n

e
d

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n

 o
n
 T

o
b

a
c
c
o

 C
o

n
tr

o
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
o

b
a
c
c
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
is

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 e
n

o
rm

o
u
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

-g
o
in

g
 d

a
m

a
g
e

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 d

o
e

s
 t
o

 
o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

It
 i
s
 a

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
a

k
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
b
o

u
t 

a
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 d
e

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g

 

P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h

/E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t&

 R
e

g
e

n
  

Page 36



C
o
n

tr
o

l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
M

e
rt

o
n

 

(P
H

O
F

 2
.1

4
) 

 
th

e
ir

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 h
a

rm
 c

a
u
s
e

d
 b

y
 s

m
o

k
in

g
. 

2
.R

e
d

u
c
e

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 

a
m

o
n
g

 
a

d
u

lt
s
, 

a
n

d
 

re
d

u
c
e

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 

a
m

o
n
g

 
ta

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ro
u

ti
n
e

 a
n
d

 
m

a
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
4

 
w

e
e

k
 q

u
it
s
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 t
o

 
o

v
e

r 
5

0
%

  

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 a

n
d
 

M
a

n
u

a
l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

N
H

S
 S

to
p

 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
a

n
d

 q
u

it
ti
n

g
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 (

L
o
c
a
l)
 

T
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 h

e
a
lt
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 s
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
iv

e
W

e
ll 

b
a

n
n

e
r 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
3

. 

T
o

 d
a

te
 t

h
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 4
9
5

 M
e

rt
o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
, 

w
it
h

 a
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 o
f 

4
9

%
. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 g
o

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a

c
k
 o

r 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 e

n
te

ri
n
g

 s
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
o

c
a

lly
, 

w
it
h

 a
 k

n
o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 4

 w
e

e
k
 q

u
it
 d

a
te

s
. 

L
o

c
a
l 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
to

p
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 

1
,5

7
1

 i
n

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
 t
o

 9
9
1

 i
n

 2
0
1
3

/1
4

.  
T

h
e
s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
p

ic
tu

re
, 
w

it
h

 a
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 d

ro
p

 o
f 

1
9
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
(P

H
O

F
 2

.1
4

) 
s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n
 M

e
rt

o
n

 a
re

 l
o
w

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 

·
 

th
e

 p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
 i
s
 1

3
.9

%
, 
a

g
a
in

s
t 
a

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
1
7

.3
%

 a
n

d
 a

n
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
1

8
.4

%
. 

·
 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 b

y
 r

o
u

ti
n
e

 a
n
d

 m
a

n
u

a
l 
g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n
 M

e
rt

o
n

 i
s
 1

6
.5

%
, 
a

g
a
in

s
t 
a

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2

4
.9

%
 a

n
d
 a

n
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

2
8

.6
%

 

P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h

/P
ro

v
id

e
r 

3
.R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 
in

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ill

e
g

a
l 

to
b

a
c
c
o

 s
a
le

s
 

to
 u

n
d
e

ra
g
e

 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

re
ta

il 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 

 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

te
s
t 

p
u

rc
h
a

s
e
s
 a

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 

A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 u
n
d

e
ra

g
e

 s
a

le
s
 h

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 2

4
 t
e

s
t 
p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

s
, 

w
it
h

 1
 i
lle

g
a
l 
s
a

le
. 
In

fr
in

g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

T
w

e
n

ty
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
te

s
t 

p
u

rc
h
a

s
e
s
 a

re
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 f
o

r 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
. 

D
u
e

 t
o

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 M

a
g

is
tr

a
te

s
 C

o
u

rt
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
e

s
t 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 m
e

t 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
R

IP
A

 a
n

d
 T

e
s
t 
P

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 

is
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 M

e
rt

o
n

/R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
’s

 L
e

g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
‘D

o
 y

o
u

 P
a

s
s
’ 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 2

7
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
 c

o
u

rs
e

 
is

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
s
e
ll 

a
g

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 s
u
c
h

 a
s
 a

lc
o
h

o
l,
 t

o
b
a

c
c
o

 a
n

d
 k

n
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e
 l
a

w
, 

p
ro

x
y
 

s
a

le
s
, 
d

u
e

 d
ili

g
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
fu

s
a

ls
 t

ra
in

in
g

.  

C
o
n

s
u
m

e
r 

&
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

4
.E

n
fo

rc
e

 
re

g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 d

is
p

la
y
 

o
f 

to
b
a

c
c
o

 
p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 

1
0

0
%

 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 

In
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

0
0

%
 o

f 
la

rg
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
ta

ile
rs

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 b

a
n

 w
ill

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 s
m

a
ll 

s
to

re
s
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
. 

C
o
n

s
u
m

e
r 

&
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

5
.E

x
p

lo
re

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

to
 n

o
rm

a
lis

e
 

s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
n

o
rm

a
lis

in
g
 

s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ts
 

C
u
rr

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 o

n
ly

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 A
c
t 
2

0
0
6

. 
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 w
ill

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 t
h

a
t 

s
e

e
k
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

/ 
C

o
n

s
u
m

e
r 

&
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

Page 37



e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ts
 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

le
g

a
l 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 

 

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
 e

.g
. 
p

la
y
g

ro
u

n
d
s
. 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
  

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

.4
: 

P
ro

m
o

te
 s

e
n

s
ib

le
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
, 

re
d

u
c
e
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 h

a
rm

 f
ro

m
 d

ru
g

 m
is

u
s
e
 (

L
in

k
 t

o
 S

a
fe

r 
M

e
rt

o
n

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

) 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r/

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

L
e

a
d

 

1
. 

R
e
d

u
c
e

 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
y
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 
re

d
u

c
e

 h
e
a

lt
h
 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 
m

is
u

s
e
 (

L
in

k
 

to
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

4
.2

)  

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 

h
o

s
p
it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 i
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
o

r 
b

e
lo

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
ra

te
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
P

ro
b

le
m

a
ti
c
 

D
ru

g
 U

s
e

r’
s
 i
n

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

(t
a

rg
e

t 
tb

c
).

 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
b

y
 x

%
 

(P
H

O
F

 2
.1

5
).

 

T
h

e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
(P

H
O

F
 2

.1
5

i,
 2

.1
5
ii 

a
n

d
 2

.1
8

) 
s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t  

·
 

5
0

2
 (

p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

) 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 h
o

s
p
it
a

l,
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 5
5

4
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 a

n
d
 6

3
7
 i
n

 
E

n
g

la
n
d

. 

·
 

1
1

.1
2
%

 o
f 
o

p
ia

te
 d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 l
e
a

v
e

 d
ru

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
re

-p
re

s
e

n
t 
in

 6
 m

o
n

th
s
, 

c
o

m
p
a

re
d

 t
o

 
9

%
 i
n
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 7

.8
%

 i
n

 E
n
g

la
n

d
. 

·
 

3
7

.2
%

 o
f 

n
o

n
 -

 o
p

ia
te

 d
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
le

a
v
e

 d
ru

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
re

-p
re

s
e

n
t 

in
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
 

T
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 M
is

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 A

lc
o
h

o
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 a

n
d

 s
ta

rt
e
d

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
4

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 r

e
a

lis
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
in

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

to
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 

·
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

d
e
to

x
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

it
h

 a
n

 i
n

te
n

ti
o
n

 t
o

 r
e

 b
a
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 m

o
re

 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

 h
o
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 l
e

v
e
l 
o

f 
n

e
e
d

 

·
 

T
o

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 f
o

rm
a

l 
“c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

” 
 l
in

k
s
 t
o

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 (

G
P

’s
 a

n
d
 P

h
a

rm
a

c
ie

s
) 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 S

h
a

re
d

 
C

a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

·
 

T
o

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 C

J
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 R

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o
n

 (
T

R
) 

/I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 O

ff
e

n
d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(I

O
M

) 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 (

re
d

e
fi
n

e
 D

ru
g

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

D
IP

) 

·
 

P
re

p
a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a

 r
e

 t
e

n
d
e

ri
n
g

 o
f 
a

ll 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 u

p
o
n

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

to
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
o

f 
(s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t)

  
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

lly
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 T

2
 a

n
d

 3
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
le

a
r 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

C
J
 c

lie
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
o

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
1

s
t  2

0
1

5
 (

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 R

e
h

a
b
ili

ta
ti
o

n
).

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

2
. 

U
s
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

 
le

v
e

rs
 t
o

 
m

in
im

is
e

 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 

re
la

te
d

 h
a

rm
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

te
s
t 

p
u

rc
h
a

s
e
s
 

 N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ro
x
y
 s

a
le

s
 

p
le

d
g
e

s
 b

y
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

A
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
‘D

o
 y

o
u

 P
a

s
s
’ 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 2

7
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
 c

o
u

rs
e

 
is

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
s
e

ll 
a

g
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 s
u
c
h

 a
s
 a

lc
o
h

o
l,
 t

o
b
a

c
c
o

 a
n

d
 k

n
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e
 l
a

w
, 

p
ro

x
y
 

s
a

le
s
, 
d

u
e

 d
ili

g
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
fu

s
a

ls
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 

P
H

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 c

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 h

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 j
o

in
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 e

m
b

e
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 

in
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 D
P

H
’s

 r
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 a

c
t,

 P
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t
h

e
 

‘S
a

fe
 S

o
c
ia

b
le

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’ 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

u
s
to

m
is

e
d

 t
o
o

ls
 t
o

 s
c
re

e
n

 n
e

w
 l
ic

e
n
s
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

C
o
n

s
u
m

e
r 

&
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
  

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

Page 38



im
p

a
c
t 
if
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
lic

e
n

s
e

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
 f

lo
w

 c
h
a

rt
s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ti
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

P
H

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 
to

o
ls

 a
re

 n
o

w
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 l
ic

e
n

s
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
g

u
n

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

n
 

lic
e
n

s
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p

u
b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 w

h
ic

h
 f
it
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

a
n
d

 a
 

R
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n
d

 d
a
ta

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 M
e

rt
o

n
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 f
e

e
d

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
F

o
ru

m
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
m

o
n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 S
o

u
th

e
rn

 
s
e

c
to

r 
 

E
x
p

lo
re

 v
a

lu
e

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o
 H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 S

o
u
th

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
F

o
ru

m
 

3
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
is

 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 

w
it
h

 w
id

e
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
  

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 v

ia
 

L
iv

e
W

e
ll 

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 S

a
fe

r 
S

o
c
ia

b
le

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 B

ri
e

f 
A

d
v
ic

e
 (

IB
A

) 
(a

lr
e
a

d
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt
h

 C
h
e
c
k
s
).

 T
h

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
o

c
u
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 

p
h
a

rm
a

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
p
la

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

s
c
ra

tc
h

 c
a

rd
s
) 

th
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 
to

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 o

n
lin

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 
te

s
te

d
 f

o
r 

ro
ll 

o
u

t 
s
h
o

rt
ly

. 
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n
g

 p
u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 s

a
fe

 d
ri
n

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
ro

u
n

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
c
o

 o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
n
d

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

e
rt

o
n

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
a

 w
id

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

lo
n
g

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 b
a
s
e
d

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

d
ri

n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h

 
C

o
 o

rd
in

a
te

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
F

o
ru

m
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
in

g
 

 

S
a

fe
r 

M
e

rt
o

n
/ 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

4
. 

P
ro

m
o

te
 a

 
c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
s
e

n
s
ib

le
 

d
ri

n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
  

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 
o

f 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 

c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g
 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 
L

iv
e
W

e
ll 

 v
ia

 
p

ilo
t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n

 
fu

tu
re

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
s
 

A
 M

e
rt

o
n

 A
lc

o
h
o

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
a

ll 
a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 o
f 
h

a
rm

. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 I

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

th
a

t 
a
 r

e
a

l 
a

p
p

e
ti
te

 e
x
is

ts
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
; 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
a

n
d

 i
n
p

u
t 

fr
o
m

 s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 

  
A

ro
u

n
d

 2
0

0
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

e
re

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
e

d
, 

8
9

 p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

4
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

e
re

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 7

 e
v
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 h

e
ld

 w
h

ic
h

 
c
o

m
b

in
e
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
  

T
h

e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

h
a

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 8

 a
n

d
 2

2
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h
 s

e
s
s
io

n
. 
F

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

n
 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 a

 d
ra

ft
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 l
a
te

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
. 

P
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
re

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IB

A
 i
n
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

P
’s

 a
n

d
 

P
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 s

e
e

k
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
e
a

rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 I

B
A

 a
n

d
 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
to

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
F

o
ru

m
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 a
p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

IB
A

 i
n

 G
P

 s
e
tt

in
g
s
  

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 c
le

a
r 

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 2

.5
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r/

s
u

c
c

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

L
e

a
d

 

Page 39



e
s

s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 

1
. 

R
e
d

u
c
e

 

la
te

 H
IV

 

d
ia

g
n
o

s
is

  

R
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

d
ia

g
n
o

s
e

d
 l
a

te
 

fo
r 

H
IV

 (
P

H
O

F
 

3
.4

).
 

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
9
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1

, 
4
8

%
 o

f 
H

IV
 d

ia
g

n
o

s
e
s
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 a
t 

a
 l
a

te
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
in

fe
c
ti
o

n
 (

C
D

4
 c

e
ll 

c
o

u
n

t 
<

3
5

0
 

c
e

lls
/m

m
3
 w

it
h

in
 3

 m
o
n

th
s
 o

f 
d

ia
g

n
o

s
is

).
 B

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d
 2

0
1

3
 d

ia
g

n
o
s
e
s
 a

t 
a

 l
a
te

 s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o
n

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

d
u
c
e

d
 t
o

 

3
9

%
. 
 

A
 p

ilo
t 

o
f 

H
IV

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 
is

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 G

P
’s

 h
a

v
e

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e
d

 a
n

 i
n

te
re

s
t 
to

 d
a

te
. 

H
IV

 

te
s
ti
n

g
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
A

S
H

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 i
n
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

A
 p

ilo
t 

o
f 

H
IV

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 A
c
u

te
 M

e
d

ic
a

l 
U

n
it
 a

t 
S

t 
H

e
lie

r 

h
o

s
p
it
a

l  
is

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

2
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
e
p

ti
o
n
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
fu

ll 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 o

f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
e
p

ti
o
n

. 

(l
o

c
a
l)
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 

H
o
rm

o
n
a

l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
e
p

ti
o
n

 i
n
 

w
o

m
e

n
 a

g
e
d

 

1
3

-2
5

 y
e

a
rs

. 

(l
o

c
a
l)
 

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 t

h
e

 C
A

S
H

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

a
w

 6
,4

3
9

 a
tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

s
 f

ro
m

 M
e

rt
o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 

·
 

4
,7

8
0

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 s

e
e

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
n

tr
a
c
e

p
ti
v
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
s
 

·
 

1
,4

8
8

 w
e

re
 g

iv
e

n
 c

o
n

d
o

m
s
 

·
 

1
,4

4
3

 l
o

n
g

 a
c
ti
n
g

 r
e

v
e

rs
ib

le
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

  

·
 

2
,4

0
5

 f
o

r 
o

ra
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
6

 P
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
 i
n
 M

e
rt

o
n

 w
h

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 E

m
e

rg
e
n

c
y
 H

o
rm

o
n
a

l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 (

E
H

C
).

 F
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
3

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

 8
6

0
 y

o
u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e

d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 p

h
a

rm
a

c
is

ts
 i
n

 M
e

rt
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 w
h

e
n

 c
o

m
p
a

re
s
 6

1
7

 y
o

u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
.  

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

3
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 

C
h
la

m
y
d

ia
 

S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

ta
rg

e
t 

(3
.2

) 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 

2
2

0
0

 C
h
la

m
y
d

ia
 

d
ia

g
n
o

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

* 

(p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0
0

 

a
g

e
d

 1
5

-2
4
 

y
e

a
rs

) 
 

*t
h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 

b
e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 

d
e
te

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 

In
 2

0
1
3

 (
la

te
s
t 

d
a
ta

 f
o

r 
w

h
o

le
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e
a

r 
fr

o
m

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
M

e
rt

o
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 d
ia

g
n

o
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

 o
f 
2

,0
6
3

 p
e

r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

5
-2

4
 y

e
a

rs
, 

w
it
h

 2
4

.2
%

 o
f 

th
e

 1
5

-2
4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 s

c
re

e
n
e

d
 a

n
d

 o
f 

th
o
s
e

 8
.5

%
 

te
s
ti
n

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
. 

T
h

e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
te

s
ts

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

w
a

s
 5

,3
1

1
. 

 F
ro

m
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
-M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 t

h
e
 d

ia
g

n
o

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 w

a
s
 2

1
3

6
.4

0
 a

n
d

 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
–
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 t
h

e
 r

a
te

 w
a

s
 1

6
6

1
.6

5
. 

  

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

  

Page 40



4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
None for the purpose of this report. 
 

5. CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
None for the purpose of this report. 
 

6. TIMETABLE 

None for the purpose of this report. 
 

7. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

None for the purposes of this report. 

 
8. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

None for the purpose of this report. 
 
9  HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS 
None for the purpose of this report. 

 
10  CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

None for the purpose of this report. 
 
11  RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

None for the purpose of this report. 
 
11  APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 

WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 
None for the purpose of this report. 

 
12  BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None for the purpose of this report. 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date: 27 January 2014 
 
Wards: All Wards 

 
Subject: Update on HWB Priority theme 4: Improving wellbeing, 

resilience and connectedness to the Partnership 
 
Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment & Regeneration  
 
Lead member: Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah, Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and Health  
 
Forward Plan reference number: N/A 
 
Contact Officer: Sara Williams, futureMerton Team 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board review and agree responses, from the 
Sustainable Communities and Transport Partnership, to the actions set out in 
the attached draft Health and Well Being Delivery Plan 2013/14 for Priority 
Theme 4: Improving wellbeing, resilience and connectedness.     
 
1. 0PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To present an update on the Health and Well Being Strategy Delivery Plan 

2014/15 for Priority theme 4: Improving wellbeing, resilience and 
connectedness to the Partnership. 
 

1.2 The Partnership to set proposed targets for 2015/16.  
 

 
2. 1 DETAILS 
 
2.1 1The production of a full Health and Wellbeing Strategy and JSNA (Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment) is a statutory duty for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board from April 2013. This first Strategy was written in 
January 2013 and covers 2013/14. A Strategy Refresh for 2015-18 is 
currently in draft. 
 
 

2.2 The Delivery Plan is the working document that has been developed to set 
out how the Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be implemented through 
the four agreed priority themes between 2013 and 2014.  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



2.2 Each of the four priority themes was given a set of high level outcomes 
with further detailed plans for each outcome which is managed by a lead 
delivery group. This includes milestones and indicators/success 
measures, frequency of reporting/by when and a specified lead for each 
action. 

 
2.3 The delivery plans were prepared as working plans by the lead delivery 

group for the priority themes as follows: 
 

Priority 1: Giving every child a healthy start  
Priority 2: Supporting people to improve their health and wellbeing 
Priority 3: Enabling people to manage their own health as independently 
as possible 
Priority 4: Improving Wellbeing, Resilience and Connectedness 
 

2.4 The Sustainable Communities and Transport Partnership is the 
designated delivery group responsible for performance monitoring the 
implementation of the Delivery Plan for Priority 4, Improving wellbeing, 
resilience and connectedness.   

 
2.5 As a delivery group it is required to report to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board on an annual basis. The Board is due to meet March 2015 for the 
completed Delivery Plan to be presented.  

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1 None for the purposes of this report.   

4. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

4.1 Lead officers were asked to complete the priority areas associated to their 
work areas.  

5. TIMETABLE 

5.1 The Delivery Plan is to be presented to the Health and Well Being Board 
March 2015.   

6. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 None for the purposes of this report-. 

7. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 None for the purposes of this report.  

8. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 None for the purposes of this report.  

10. RISK AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

Page 44



 

APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THIS REPORT  

None for the purposes of this report. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Merton’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment which can be found here: 
http://www.merton.gov.uk/health-social-care/publichealth/jsna.htm 

Merton’s final Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013/14 found here:  

http://www.merton.gov.uk/democratic_services/w-agendas/w-fpreports/1222.pdf 

 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



1
 

  M
e
rt

o
n

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

 

 D
e

li
v
e
ry

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

          Page 47



2
 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
e
m

e
 4

: 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
, 

re
s
il

ie
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
n

e
s
s

 
 

 
 

 

L
e
a
d

 D
e
li

v
e
ry

 P
a
rt

n
e
r:

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  

 
 

Page 48



3
 

 D
e
li

v
e
ry

 P
la

n
 -

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

h
e
m

e
 4

: 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
, 
R

e
s
il

ie
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
n

e
s
s

 

 
L

e
a

d
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 P

a
rt

n
e

r:
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

L
e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.1

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

4
.1

.1
. 

R
e

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 o
f 

J
o
b
 S

e
e
k
e
rs

 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e

 

 

F
u
tu

re
M

e
rt

o
n
 

R
e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o
n

 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

M
o
n
th

ly
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

 

fi
g
u
re

s
 f

ro
m

 

J
C

P
 

(N
O

M
IS

) 

3
8
8
5

 

T
o
ta

l 
M

e
rt

o
n
 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 

(F
e
b
 2

0
1
3
) 

 

1
,9

0
6

 

M
it
c
h
a
m

 J
C

P
  

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 

(A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
) 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

is
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 t
h
e

 

M
it
c
h
a
m

 

c
la

im
a
n
t 

 c
o
u
n

t 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

to
 1

,8
0
0
 b

y
 1

s
t  

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 1

7
0
0
 b

y
 

3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 

 In
 

M
it
c
h
a
m

 

th
e
 

c
la

im
a
n
t 

c
o
u
n
t 

is
 

1
2
0
2

 a
s
 

o
f 

N
o
v
 

2
0
1
4

. 
 

 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

M
e
rt

o
n

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o
v
 

2
0
1
4

 i
s
 2

3
7
5
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
q
u
a

te
s
 t

o
 1

.7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
3

.9
%

 o
n
 a

 

y
e

a
r 

e
a
rl

ie
r 

 (
S

W
) 

 A
 n

e
w

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 
P

la
n
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
to

 b
e

 
la

u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 (

E
W

G
) 

g
ro

u
p
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

4
.1

.2
. 

C
h

ild
re

n
 i
n
 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
 (

P
H

O
F

 1
.1

) 

 

C
h
ild

re
n

 

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

 
 

 
1
7
.7

%
 

 

 

4
.1

.3
. 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n
d
e
r 

1
6

’s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 l
o

w
 

in
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 

F
a
m

ily
 

P
o

v
e
rt

y
 

G
ro

u
p

 

A
lli

s
o

n
 J

o
n
e
s
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 

1
9
.7

%
 

(2
0
0
9
) 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

2
9
.4

%
 

E
n
g

la
n
d
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

2
1
.9

%
 

 

T
B

C
- 

u
n
d
e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

L
B

M
 P

o
lic

y
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

T
e
a
m

 

1
7
.5

%
 

 

 

Page 49



4
 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.2

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

s
a
fe

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 

4
.2

.1
. 
K

P
I 

re
la

te
d
 t

o
 

w
o
rk

 p
la

c
e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

(d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 /

 K
im

 B
ro

w
n
) 

  

H
R

 
 

 
 

 

T
h
e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
 2

0
1
4

 w
a
s
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 N
o
v
 2

0
1
4
 

- 
J
a
n
 2

0
1

5
. 
T

h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
lla

te
d
 b

y
 F

e
b
 2

0
1

5
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
fo

r 

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 c

h
a
rt

e
r 

in
 N

o
v
 

2
0
1
4

 a
n

d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

to
w

a
rd

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l.
  
  

 

4
.2

.2
. 

K
P

I 
d

e
ri

v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 

c
ri
m

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

S
a
fe

r 
M

e
rt

o
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
 

7
7
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 

w
h
e
re

 c
ri
m

e
 i
s
 

a
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 

 
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 s

a
y
 

c
ri
m

e
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

  

 

4
.2

.3
. 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 

w
e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

(K
ri
s
 

W
it
h
e
ri
n
g
to

n
) 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
 

9
0
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
 

 

R
e
s
p
o
n

d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r,

 w
it
h
 j
u
s
t 

7
%

 
d
is

a
g
re

e
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

 

8
9
%

 

 

4
.2

.4
. 

H
o

w
 w

o
rr

ie
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e

l 
a

b
o
u
t 

c
ri
m

e
, 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r,

 d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

, 

d
ru

n
k
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

ro
w

d
in

e
s
s
 (

K
ri
s
 

W
it
h
e
ri
n
g
to

n
) 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
 

5
0
%

 C
ri
m

e
 

4
4
%

 A
S

B
 

4
1
%

 d
ru

g
 

u
s
e
rs

 

3
3
%

 d
ru

n
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 r

o
w

d
in

e
s
s
 

 
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
“v

e
ry

 

w
o
rr

ie
d
 /

 f
a
ir
ly

 w
o
rr

ie
d
” 

to
 

th
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 “

h
o

w
 w

o
rr

ie
d
 

a
re

 y
o

u
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
?
” 

C
ri
m

e
 =

 5
0

%
, 

A
S

B
 =

 4
4

%
, 

d
ru

g
s
 =

 3
3
%

, 

d
ru

n
k
 &

 r
o

w
d

y
 =

 4
0
%

 

C
ri
m

e
 5

0
%

 
A

S
B

 4
2
%

 
D

ru
g
s
 3

2
%

 
D

ru
n
k
 &

 R
o

w
d

y
 

4
1
%

 

Page 50



5
 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.3

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 

lo
c
a
l 
a
s
s
e
ts

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rk

s
, 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 l
e
is

u
re

 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 

 

4
.3

a
.1

. 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 

M
V

S
C

 
 

 
 

 
N

e
it
h
e
r 

M
V

S
C

 n
o
r 

V
C

M
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h

is
 K

P
I.

  
W

ill
 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

K
P

Is
 

in
 t

h
e
 H

&
W

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

re
fr

e
s
h
 (

H
a

y
le

y
 J

a
m

e
s
, 

M
V

S
C

) 
 

 

 

4
.3

a
.2

. 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e
 

m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

M
V

S
C

 
 

 
 

 

 

4
.3

a
.3

. 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 r
e
g

is
te

re
d
 

w
it
h
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

M
e
rt

o
n

 (
V

C
M

) 

M
V

S
C

  

J
o
n
 S

to
n
e

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
 

1
,3

8
5
 A

p
ri
l-

S
e
p
t 

2
0

1
3

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

e
t 

b
y
 M

V
S

C
 

 

- 
2
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 –

 

J
u
n
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

- 
“G

o
o
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

” 
–
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rs

 w
it
h
 e

a
c
h
 

o
th

e
r 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

lo
n

e
lin

e
s
s
 

- 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
 3

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

- 
D

ig
n

it
y
 i
n
 C

a
re

 –
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

in
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 

- 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 a

 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

th
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 

 

Page 51



6
 

 

- 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 W

a
tc

h
 t
o
 

b
e
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 (

H
 J

a
m

e
s
) 

 

4
.3

a
.4

. 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

V
C

M
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
it
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e

d
s
 (

e
.g

. 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
, 

m
e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a

lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

, 
o
th

e
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
ili

ti
e
s
) 

w
h

o
 a

re
 

in
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

M
V

S
C

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
 

7
0
%

 a
d
u

lt
s
; 

7
5
%

 y
o
u

n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 A

p
ri

l-

S
e
p
t 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
/y

o
u
n
g

 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

1
2
 

w
e
e
k
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o

d
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
/h

e
a
lt
h
, 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 

s
to

p
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
 

ti
m

e
 b

u
t 
th

e
n
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 i
t 

fo
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
th

ir
d
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(H
 J

a
m

e
s
).

 

 

4
.3

b
.1

. 
T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

M
e
rt

o
n
’s

 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e
s
 

L
e
is

u
re

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n

e
 

P
a
rs

lo
e

 

M
o
n
th

ly
  

 
 

 
 

 

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 
to

 o
n
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

c
o
lle

c
t 

a
n
d

 h
a

v
e
 

a
d
d
e

d
 i
n
to

 o
u
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

1
5
/1

6
. 

 
W

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g

 h
is

to
ri
c
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

a
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 G

L
L
 o

u
r 

m
o
n
th

ly
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

 

Page 52



7
 

 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

 

4
.3

b
.2

. 
G

re
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
- 

fr
o
m

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 

 

D
o
u
g
 N

a
p

ie
r 

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

/ 

a
n
n
u

a
lly

  

7
1
%

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

o
r 

v
e
ry

 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 

 
 

 
7
3
%

 

K
P

I 
fo

r 
4
.3

a
 o

n
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 d

e
ri

v
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

M
V

S
C

  

(M
V

S
C

) 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

M
e
rt

o
n

  
A

n
n

u
a

l 
 

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

e
t 

 

  

 

 

                         

 

Page 53



8
 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.4

 M
o
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 

o
w

n
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
k
ill

s
 

    

4
.4

.1
. 

B
ri

d
g

in
g

 t
h
e

 

a
d
u

lt
 s

k
ill

s
 g

a
p

- 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

in
 a

d
u

lt
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

m
o
n
g
 

th
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 w

a
rd

s
 

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

(E
W

G
) 

/ 

M
e
rt

o
n

 A
d

u
lt
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

(M
A

E
) 

A
n
n

u
a

l-
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e

a
r 

4
.4

.1
.a

 3
6
%

 o
f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 o
n
 

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 

a
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 

w
a
rd

 

4
.4

.1
.b

 2
7
%

 o
f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 o
n
 

n
o
n
-

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 a

 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 

w
a
rd

 

 

 

    

  

3
6
%

 o
f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 o
n
 

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 a

 
d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 

w
a
rd

 

 

2
7
%

 o
f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 o
n
 

n
o
n
-q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 a

 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 

w
a
rd

 

 

4
.4

.2
. 

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b

ili
ty

- 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
n

t 

in
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
ft

e
r 

a
tt
e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 c
o
u
rs

e
. 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

(E
W

G
) 

/ 

M
A

E
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
 

1
1
%

 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
lf
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

 

   

              

  

1
1
%

 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
lf
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

Page 54



9
 

 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y

 
B

a
s
e
li

n
e

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.4

.3
. 

N
o
. 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 

th
a
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

D
e
m

a
n
d
-L

e
d
 P

ilo
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

(E
W

G
) 

/ 

G
re

n
fe

ll 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 

N
e

w
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

ta
rg

e
t 
c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

0
 

4
0
0
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

to
 a

tt
e
n
d

 o
v
e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

 

T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h

e
 D

e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
a

d
 

p
ilo

t 
h

a
s
 e

n
g
a
g

e
d
 i
n
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
2
0
0
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 

w
h
o
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
m

 h
a
v
e

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

x
. 

5
5

0
 

q
u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

9
0
%

. 

O
v
e
r 

5
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e
 

g
a
in

e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ff

e
re

d
.  

 T
h
e
 

p
ilo

t 
h

a
s
 e

n
g
a
g

e
d
 w

it
h

 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 O

c
a
d

o
, 
W

h
it
e
 

L
ig

h
t,
 H

o
m

e
 I
n
s
te

a
d
, 

T
N

T
, 

C
a
p
it
a

l 
T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

.  

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

4
. 

4
.4

.4
. 

N
o
. 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 

e
n
g
a

g
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 

R
o
u
te

s
2
W

o
rk

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
ir
c
le

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

M
e
rt

o
n

 P
ri

o
ry

 

(C
H

M
P

) 
 

Y
e
a
rl

y
  

8
6
9
 e

n
g

a
g
e

d
 

1
2
/1

3
  

1
0
0
 

 

T
h
e
 R

2
W

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 

re
g
u
la

r 
jo

b
s
 c

lu
b

 i
n
 

M
it
c
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e

w
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 s

k
ill

s
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 

1
1
2
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

1
7
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 c
a
te

ri
n
g
 

c
o
m

p
a
n

y
, 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

 

g
a
rd

e
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

n
lin

e
 

c
lo

th
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
. 

 

Page 55



1
0

 

 

4
.5

 B
u
ild

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

lo
c
a

l 

a
m

e
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e
l 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
 

a
n

d
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

L
e
a
d

 
F

re
q

u
e
n

c
y
 

B
a
s
e
li

n
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

(R
A

G
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

4
.5

.1
. 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p

lic
a
n

ts
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

(P
H

O
F

 1
.1

5
 i
 &

 i
i)

 

(P
H

O
F

 1
.1

5
 i
 &

 i
i)

 

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 

 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
, 

2
2
2
 

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 

m
a
d
e
 a

 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 9

8
 w

e
re

 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 

2
2
2

 
 

 

In
 2

0
1
3

-1
4
, 
2

8
6
 

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 m

a
d
e
 a

 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

w
h
ic

h
 1

0
3
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 

a
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 

In
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
1
4

-

1
5
, 

1
7
6
 h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 m

a
d
e
 

a
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

, 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 6

6
 

w
e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

(A
 C

h
u

  

  

T
B

C
 

 

4
.5

.2
. 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

(s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 

1
0
0
 a

t 
a

n
y
 p

o
in

t 
in

 

ti
m

e
) 

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

 

A
n
n

u
a

l 

 

8
7

 

(2
0
1
2
- 1

3
) 

S
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 1

0
0

 
 

 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1

4
-1

5
 i
s
 

‘N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

s
h

o
u
ld

 

n
o
t 
e
x
c
e
e

d
 1

2
5
 a

t 
a
n

y
 

p
o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e
).

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 

1
2
8
 h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 T

A
 a

t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 (
A

 C
h
u
).

 

  

T
B

C
 

Page 56



1
1

 

 

4
.5

.3
. 

N
o
.o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

w
a
s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
  

  

H
o
u
s
in

g
  

A
n
n

u
a

l 
 

 
5
0
0
 

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e
d
 5

2
9
 

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
 2

0
1
2

-1
3
 a

n
d
 4

2
3
 

c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

9
 m

o
n
th

s
 

o
f 

2
0
1
3

-1
4
 (

A
 C

h
u
) 

5
5
0

 

4
.5

.4
. 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
  

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

C
a
te

ri
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

(H
C

C
) 

O
R

 M
y
 C

h
o
ic

e
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 

A
n
d
re

w
 

B
ra

d
le

y
  

A
n
n

u
a

l 

1
4
 H

C
C

 

4
 M

y
 C

h
o
ic

e
 

(2
0
1
2
/1

3
) 

2
0
 o

f 
H

C
C

+
M

C
 

 
P

a
rt

 o
f 

R
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 

D
e
a
l 
 

 

4
.5

.5
. 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
tt

in
g
 s

h
o
p
s
/ 

g
a
m

b
lin

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

 

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
4
0

 
T

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
  

 

  

A
s
 o

f 
1
5
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
5
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 3
8

 l
ic

e
n
c
e
d
 

b
e
tt

in
g
 s

h
o
p
s
/ 

g
a
m

b
lin

g
 

re
la

te
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
 M

e
rt

o
n

’s
 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

G
a
m

b
lin

g
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
. 

 

4
.6

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
n
e
s
s
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

re
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

4
.6

.1
. 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 

a
re

a
 t

re
a
t 
e

a
c
h
 o

th
e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 (

K
ri
s
 

W
it
h
e
ri
n
g
to

n
) 

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 

9
2
%

 n
e
t 
a

g
re

e
 

(2
0
1
2
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

p
.1

1
8
) 

M
a
in

ta
in

 a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

9
2
%

 n
e
t 
a

g
re

e
 

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 h

ig
h
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
 t

re
a
t 
e

a
c
h
 o

th
e
r 

w
it
h
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 

a
n
d

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 
(9

1
%

),
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

a
m

o
n
g
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
g
ra

d
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
d

e
n
ts

 (
A

B
=

9
6
%

) 
 

 

 Page 57



1
2

 

   O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.1
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
  

 
L

e
a
d

 

P
re

p
a

re
 a

 r
e

fr
e

s
h
e

d
 

E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 G

ro
w

th
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

th
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
  

A
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

 t
o

 2
0

1
5

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 o

n
 2

2
n

d
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

6
 c

o
m

p
o
n

e
n

ts
 t

o
 g

ro
w

th
 w

it
h

 f
o

c
u
s
 o

n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

w
a

rd
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
, 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 

to
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
, 

in
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
e
s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

fu
tu

re
M

e
rt

o
n
 

C
re

a
te

 a
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t/

S
k
ill

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

le
a
d
s
 

o
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 d
e

liv
e
r 

th
e
 6

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

W
G

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

1
.  

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 

a
n
d
 t

a
k
e

-u
p
 o

f 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 

2
.  

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

 e
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

3
. 

S
im

p
lif

y
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

o
ff

e
r 

4
.  

S
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
o
s
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
s
t 

fr
o
m

 

th
e
 l
a
b

o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

5
. 

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

6
.D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

 

M
e
rt

o
n

 o
ff

e
r 

 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 f

o
rm

e
d
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 S

u
b

 

G
ro

u
p
 o

f 
th

e
 S

C
T

P
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
3
. 

 

 

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
 b

y
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

u
b

g
ro

u
p
, 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
2

. 
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 E

W
G

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
ri
n

g
 a

 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 

       

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g

 S
u
b
 

G
ro

u
p

 

Page 58



1
3

 

 

 
   

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.2
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

a
fe

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
. 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

  
L

e
a
d

 

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 m
a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

  
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
: 

In
it
ia

l 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 s

c
a
n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 b

ro
u

g
h
t 

to
 t
h

e
 

E
x
e
c
 B

o
a
rd

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

–
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

: 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
, 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 o

f 

th
e
 S

A
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 v

ic
ti
m

, 
o
ff

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 l
o

c
a
ti
o
n

 

c
h
a
p
te

rs
.  

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
: 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 M

a
tr

ix
 

re
a
d

y
 f

o
r 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

x
e
c
 

B
o
a
rd

. 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
c
id

e
d
. 

 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
 t
h

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
th

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

b
e
 f

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 a

n
a

ly
ti
c
a

l 
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 (
Ia

n
 C

a
lla

g
h

a
n
) 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

ll 
c
ri
m

e
 t

y
p
e
s
 e

x
c
e
p
t 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 

re
p
o
rt

s
  

  
 

S
a
fe

r 
M

e
rt

o
n
  

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

e
e
t 

lo
c
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 

o
f 

h
ig

h
e
r 

c
ri
m

e
 

ty
p

e
s
. 

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
: 

R
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
. 

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
: 
W

ri
ti
n
g
 o

f 
P

/s
h
ip

 P
la

n
. 

 A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1
4
: 

N
e

w
 P

/s
h

ip
 P

la
n
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
s
. 

 
W

o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
 c

a
n

n
o
t 

b
e
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
 i
s
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
, 

to
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
4

 (
Ia

n
 C

a
lla

g
h
a

n
).

 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 i
n
 a

ll 
a
re

a
s
 e

x
c
e
p
t 

fo
r 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

  
  

S
a
fe

r 
M

e
rt

o
n
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

 
fo

r 
d
ru

g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
w

o
rk

, 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

R
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

ru
g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 d
ru

g
 

u
s
e
 i
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
c
e
 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-l
e
t 

a
n

d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n

 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

. 
 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 /

 S
a
fe

r 

M
e
rt

o
n

  

Page 59



1
4

 

 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 

re
la

te
d
 c

ri
m

e
, 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
. 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.3
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
s
s
e
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rk

s
, 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 w
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

  
L

e
a
d

 

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 M
e
rt

o
n
 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
2
 –

2
0
1

4
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
k
e

y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 

 
M

V
S

C
 

P
ro

te
c
t 

a
n
d
 e

n
h

a
n
c
e
 

o
p
e
n

 s
p
a
c
e
 c

re
a
ti
n

g
 n

o
 

n
e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n

 s
p
a
c
e
 

o
r 

s
p
o
rt

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

u
n
le

s
s
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 a

n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
P

la
y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

 

c
ri
te

ri
a
. 

M
e
rt

o
n

 O
p
e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
 S

tu
d

y
 (

M
O

S
S

) 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 2

0
1
0
  

N
o
 r

e
a

l 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 b

u
t 

p
o

lic
y
 

a
p
p

lie
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 M

O
S

S
  

N
o
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e

 
N

o
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h
 

S
it
e
s
 a

n
d

 P
o
lic

ie
s
 D

P
D

 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

F
in

a
lis

e
 t

h
e
 W

a
n
d
le

 

V
a
lle

y
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
P

a
rk

 

b
o
u
n

d
a
ry

 a
n

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 g

re
e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

, 

e
n
h
a

n
c
e
 i
ts

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fo
rm

a
l 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n

 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

. 

A
d
o

p
t 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 M

a
p

 b
y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
4
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

o
u
n
d

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 

W
a
n
d
le

 V
a
lle

y
 R

e
g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rk

.  

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 F
u

n
d
 b

id
 f

o
r 

£
1
.9

m
 

fo
r 

L
iv

in
g
 W

a
n
d
le

 P
ro

je
c
t 

- 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 

2
0
1
3

  

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 M

a
p

 

B
id

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 k

n
o
w

n
 b

y
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
  

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

: 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 

s
ig

n
a

g
e
, 

w
a
te

r 
v
o

le
 

h
a
b

it
a
ts

 e
tc

. 
 

P
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
ri

n
g
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1

4
. 
N

o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
a
n
d
le

 V
a
lle

y
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

P
a
rk

 b
o
u
n
d

a
ry

. 
A

d
o
p
ti
o
n

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1

4
 (

T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

T
h
re

e
 m

a
jo

r 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 e
it
h
e
r 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 b

ri
d

g
e
 a

t 

B
e

w
le

y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d

 v
a
ri
o

u
s
 o

th
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
lo

n
g

 

th
e
 r

iv
e
r 

c
o

u
rs

e
 (

D
 N

a
p

ie
r)

. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 l
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

W
V

R
P

 T
ru

s
t.

  

Page 60



1
5

 

 P
ro

m
o
te

 c
u
lt
u
re

, 
s
p
o
rt

, 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 b

y
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 (

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

m
o
re

) 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 l
e
is

u
re

, 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
a
n

d
 

s
p
o
rt

in
g

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
c
a
p

it
a

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
e
rt

o
n

 S
p

o
rt

s
 P

it
c
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
2

0
1
1

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

, 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
, 
a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 l
a
u
n
c
h

 

N
o
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s
, 

te
n
n

is
 c

o
u
rt

s
, 

M
U

G
A

’s
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
 l
e

is
u
re

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t  

N
o
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e

 

N
e

w
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
  

B
M

X
 t

ra
c
k
, 

n
e

w
 s

p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h

e
s
 a

n
d

 

p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s
  

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o
n

lin
e
 

le
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 

b
o
o
k
in

g
s
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

R
id

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

in
a

u
g
u
ra

l 
e

v
e

n
t 

P
la

n
n

e
d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

£
3
0
0
k
 i
n
to

 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
t,

 m
a
c
h
in

e
ry

 a
n
d
 b

u
ilt

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 i
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

 

L
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 

in
it
ia

te
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
in

g
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h

e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

B
M

X
 t

ra
c
k
 i
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 a

 M
e
rt

o
n
 S

a
in

ts
 

B
M

X
 C

lu
b
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g
e
 f

o
r 

tw
o

 n
e

w
 f

lo
o
d
lit

 M
U

G
A

’s
 a

t 

C
a
n
o

n
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 

O
n
lin

e
 b

o
o
k
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

L
e

is
u
re

 a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n

ts
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

ro
lli

n
g
 o

u
t,

 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
lit

ie
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t
h

e
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

.  

R
id

e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 e

v
e

n
t 
c
a
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
 S

u
n
d

a
y
 4

th
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

a
n
d

 m
a
n

y
 

p
e
o
p

le
 l
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 t
o

 c
h
e
e
r 

th
e
 r

id
e
rs

 o
n
. 

L
o
c
a
l 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 h
e
lp

e
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

ro
a
d
 s

a
fe

ly
, 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 b

in
 

W
im

b
le

d
o
n
 a

n
d
 R

a
y
n

e
s
 P

a
rk

 c
re

a
te

d
 t

h
e
ir
 

o
w

n
 s

ty
le

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 g
u

e
s
ts

 e
n
te

rt
a
in

e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p

le
 m

o
re

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

tr
y
 t

o
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
n

 a
d

v
a
n
c
e

 o
f 

a
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 
c
o
m

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

e
rt

o
n
 

in
 2

0
1
4

.  

M
e
rt

o
n

’s
 C

u
lt
u
re

 &
 S

p
o
rt

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

  
is

 i
n
 

d
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 L

S
G

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
t 

is
 

G
re

e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 

 L
 &

 C
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

Page 61



1
6

 

 

n
o

w
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 n

o
n

- 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
(C

 P
a
rs

lo
e
) 

 

N
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll.
 S

e
v
e
ra

l 
p

la
y
g
ro

u
n
d

 a
n

d
 

g
re

e
n
 g

y
m

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 M
a
jo

r 
n

e
w

 

w
a
te

r 
p

la
y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
n
 M

it
c
h
a

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

s
ta

g
e
s
 (

D
 N

a
p
ie

r)
  

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.4
: 

M
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
a
k
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
k
il
ls

 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
L

e
a
d

 

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

k
ill

s
 

a
n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 

S
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

re
a
d

y
 b

y
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1

3
  

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

e
t 
to

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

(A
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a

d
y
 f

o
r 

J
a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
5
).

  

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g

 

G
ro

u
p

 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
  

 

G
ro

u
p
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 b

y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

th
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

       

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 S

u
b

g
ro

u
p
 w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

2
. 
 T

h
e
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

in
 c

re
a
ti
n

g
 o

v
e
r 

1
8
0
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£

5
0

0
k
  

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

Page 62



1
7

 

 

    

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.5
: 

B
u

il
d

 a
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 
lo

c
a
l 
a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 
K

e
y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

  
L

e
a
d

 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
it
e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 C

o
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
s
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 t
h

e
 C

o
re

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 

P
la

n
 (

4
1

1
  
n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
te

n
u
re

s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

fr
o
m

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

te
n
 y

e
a
rs

).
 

P
u
b

lis
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

ra
je

c
to

ry
 a

n
n
u

a
lly

  

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

4
1
1
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 p
e
r 

y
e

a
r 

(A
p
ri

l-
M

a
rc

h
) 

(p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 3
2
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 

p
e
r 

a
n

n
u
m

; 
ta

rg
e
t 

c
h
a

n
g
e

d
 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
)  

4
4
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

 M
e
rt

o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1

3
 a

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 (

T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

 

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

n
e

w
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
. 

P
u
b

lis
h
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
n
u
a

lly
 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p
p
e

a
ls

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

is
s
u
e
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 a
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 

M
e
rt

o
n

’s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 n
o
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 

d
is

m
is

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e

(T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

Page 63



1
8

 

 A
ll 

n
e

w
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 b

u
ilt

 t
o

 

‘L
if
e
ti
m

e
 H

o
m

e
s
’ 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 1

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

n
e

w
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a

ir
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
, 

o
r 

e
a
s
ily

 a
d

a
p
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a

ir
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

P
u
b

lis
h
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
n
u
a

lly
 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p
p
e

a
ls

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

is
s
u
e
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 a
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 

 

M
e
rt

o
n

’s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

  

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

4
 –

 n
o
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 

d
is

m
is

s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 (

T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

     

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
ta

il 
a

n
d
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n
 a

ll 
o
u
r 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

S
u
rv

e
y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
n
u
a

lly
 

%
 r

e
ta

il 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

E
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

re
ta

il 
v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

in
 M

e
rt

o
n

’s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
. 

 
 

·
 

W
im

b
le

d
o
n
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 =

 5
%

 

·
 

C
o
lli

e
rs

 W
o
o
d
 =

 1
1
%

 

·
 

M
it
c
h
a
m

 t
o

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 =

  
5
%

 (
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
4
%

 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
2

-1
3
) 

·
 

M
o
rd

e
n
 =

 4
.5

%
%

 (
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
3
%

 s
in

c
e
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
) 

·
 

N
o
rt

h
 M

it
c
h
a
m

 L
o
c
a
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
 =

 2
%

(r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

5
%

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
)  

·
 

M
o
ts

p
u
r 

P
a
rk

 L
o
c
a
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
 =

 1
3
%

 

·
 

R
a

y
n

e
s
 P

a
rk

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
 =

  
4
%

 

·
 

A
rt

h
u
r 

R
o
a
d
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
e
n

tr
e
 =

  
3
 %

 

·
 

W
im

b
le

d
o
n
 V

ill
a

g
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
C

e
n
tr

e
 =

  
7

%
 

(i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
%

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
) 

 T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
s
 1

4
%

 
(2

0
1
3
/1

4
) 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

a
ta

 C
o
m

p
a
n

y
 

a
n
d
 E

x
p
e
ri

a
n
 G

o
a
d
. 

 
 In

 t
h

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 y

e
a
r 

a
ll 

to
w

n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
is

 v
a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 w
h

ic
h
 

m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
M

e
rt

o
n
 i
s
 f

a
ri
n
g

 b
e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

 

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

Page 64



1
9

 

 T
o
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

la
n

d
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 p

ro
v
e
n

 

d
e
m

a
n
d
. 

P
u
b

lis
h
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n
n
u
a

lly
 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p
p
e

a
ls

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

is
s
u
e
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 a
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 

M
e
rt

o
n

’s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u
e

 (
T

 B
u
tl
e
r)

. 

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

T
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

p
it
c
h
e
s
 f

o
r 

g
y
p
s
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

v
e

lle
rs

 

b
y
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

it
e
s
 

a
n
d
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 P

la
n

 

A
d
o

p
t 

S
it
e
s
 a

n
d

 P
o
lic

ie
s
 P

la
n
 b

y
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

it
c
h
e
s
 

 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 

in
s
p
e
c
to

r 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 

is
s
u
e
  

In
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
s
p

e
c
to

r 
a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

th
a

t 
n
o

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

it
c
h
e
s
 

a
t 
p

re
s
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

is
s
u
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 (

fi
rs

t 
re

v
ie

w
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
6
))

 

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

W
a
s
te

 P
la

n
 A

n
n
u
a

l 

M
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

ta
rg

e
ts

 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
 t

h
e
 g

a
p

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 t

o
n
n

e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 s

o
u
th

 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 t

o
n

n
e
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e

d
 i
n
 s

o
u
th

 L
o

n
d
o
n

 

(“
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 g

a
p
”)

 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 g

a
p

 =
 >

5
0
0
,0

0
0

 

to
n
n

e
s
 

T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 a

re
a
 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 3

2
7
,1

1
9
 t
o
n

n
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

. 

●
 T

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

w
a
s
te

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

a
re

 9
9

4
,6

0
4
 t

o
n
n

e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
, 

1
,0

0
4
,3

4
9
 t
o

n
n

e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

6
 a

n
d
 1

,0
1
7

,4
2

7
 

to
n
n

e
s
 i
n
 2

0
2

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
1
s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 m
is

s
e
d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

s
e
v
e
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 4

9
5
,4

8
0
 t
o

n
n
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

it
h
 t
h

e
s
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 f

u
tu

re
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
, 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

fo
r 

2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 2

0
2

1
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

e
t.

(T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

A
d
o

p
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n
g

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

A
d
o

p
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 e

n
d
 2

0
1

3
 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

e
t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 J

u
n
e

/J
u
ly

 

2
0
1
4

 

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

Page 65



2
0

 

 

        

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 4

.6
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
n

n
e
c
te

d
n

e
s
s
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
il
ie

n
c
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
In

d
ic

a
to

r/
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

  
L

e
a
d

 

 C
o
n
d

u
c
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 M

e
rt

o
n
’s

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

-F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3

 
E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 

in
s
p
e
c
to

r 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e

  

A
ll 

fo
u
r 

o
f 

M
e
rt

o
n
’s

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1
2

-1
3

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 

M
e
rt

o
n

’s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

(T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
t 
a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 M

e
rt

o
n
 A

re
a

 

F
o
ru

m
s
 t

h
a
t 
e
x
p
re

s
s
 a

n
 

in
te

re
s
t 

o
n
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
lis

m
 B

ill
 

2
0
1
0

. 
 

 

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 

W
im

b
le

d
o
n
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
2
. 

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

fo
ru

m
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

h
is

 -
 

a
n
n
u

a
lly

 

1
0
0
%

 o
f 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

N
o
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
ru

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 

th
is

 t
h

o
u
g

h
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

T
 B

u
tl
e
r)

  

F
u
tu

re
 M

e
rt

o
n

 

  Page 66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014
	4 Transforming Primary Care
	04_Transforming Primary Care presentation

	5 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Consultation
	6 Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Report on Priority 2
	7 Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Report on Priority 4
	07_HWB Priority 4 Delivery Plan


